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#  Final RFP 

Section

Subject/Title Industry Comment/Question DOE Response

1 B, B.11(d) 

page B9

Provisional Payment of Fee This clause as written discourages Contractor's from seeking fee for achievement of interim 

milestones. For Task Orders of long duration (i.e Task Order #3 is 42 months) it is inequitable to expect 

Contractor's to only earn fee at the achievement of final outcomes. It is recommended that this clause 

be revised to allow for negotiated interim milestone fee payments

Per the clause, Provisional Payment of Fee is available for "making progress towards meeting the 

performance measures for the incentive before the Contractor has earned the available fee."

The Portsmouth D&D procurement is an End State contract, and thus, the incentive is tied to the 

completion of "End States" versus "interim milestones". Per Section C: 

The various elements of this performance work statement (PWS) have descriptive statements of DOE’s 

desired end state associated with the performance of each element. That desired end state description is 

intended to provide the Contractor with insight regarding DOE’s perspective on the objectives that need 

to be accomplished in order to achieve completion of D&D activities at the PORTS site.

The term “End State” is defined as the specified situation at the successful completion of the final phase 

of an environmental cleanup activity. It is DOE’s intent with this Contract that the end states shall be 

achieved in order to complete the Contract scope.

Please note, paragraph (d) is referring to the "earning of fee" whereby the Government and Contractor 

will agree to link, to the maximum extent practical, the Contractor's earning of fee to its achievement of 

final outcomes. The provisional payments, performance measures and Task Order requirements will be 

negotiated.

No change.

2 L, Attachment 

L-7, page L-7-

3

Transition Deliverables Transition deliverable T1-002 requires that  the Task Order Proposal for: Task Order 2 - 

Implementation Period be provided within 60 days of TO-1 NTP. Can you please provide Task Order 2 - 

Implementation Period so that we can plan appropriate resources in Transition to produce this 

deliverable?

The Draft Task Order #2 Implementation Period is available on the Portsmouth D&D procurement 

website, under the Documents Library. It is listed under "PORTS D&D Draft Task Orders".  No change.

3 B, B.11(d) 

page B9

Provisional Payment of Fee We agree incentive fees should be tied to final outcomes rather than interim activities but assume 

provisional fee payments will be negotiated for task orders. Is this correct?

Yes, provisional fee payments and the associated performance measures will be negotiated for Task 

Orders, as applicable. No change.

4 L PPIF May we treat Blocks 1 through 15 in the PPIF forms as a table and answer in 9 pt type? No. Per Final RFP provision L.10 DOE-L-2001 Proposal Preparation Instructions – General (Oct 2015) 

Alternate I and Alternate II (Oct 2015) (Revised), paragraph (f) (3):

Print type. Paragraph text shall be 12 point or larger, single spaced, using Times New Roman font, 

including paragraph text in the Section L attachments (including Attachment L-3, Past Performance 

Reference Information Form). Paragraph headings and section titles may use Arial or Times New Roman 

font 12 point or larger. Headers and footers, spreadsheets, charts, tables (with the exception of the 

Attachment L-3 table, as noted above), diagrams or design drawings, and graphs must be 9 point or larger 

using Times New Roman or Arial font. Bold and italics are acceptable, and narrow is not acceptable.

5 L PPIF Provided that we fully answer the question in each block in the manner DOE intends, may we delete 

parenthetical instructions and notes in the PPIF form such as “(which shall match the Name, DUNS and 

UEI …)” in Block 2, “*The reference point of contact must include …” in Block 7 and “Note: An 

estimated breakdown  of the work…” in Block 14? These deletions would enable offerors to provide 

more detailed answers in Blocks 16 and 18 within the 7-page limit.

No. Per the Final RFP note referenced on the Attachment L-3 form:

Note: The Offeror may amend the format for Attachment L-3, Past Performance Reference Information 

Form, as long as the exact information, font and size (per DOE-L-2001), and page limitations are followed.
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6 L, L.14(d)(1) 

page L-23

Team Oral Interviews Can you elaborate on team problem solving format? Will it be a continuous exchange between DOE 

and team or will it be a sequence of problem--team development of solution-presentation for multiple 

incidents?

DOE will conduct an interview with the key personnel team by presenting multiple incidents at the 

beginning of the interview. The key personnel team will have 60 minutes to respond to the incidents.

7 C, Page C-3 Background (d) States that OSMS contractor will be responsible for waste management. We assume this is for site-

wide non-D&D generated wastes. Can you clarify OSMS waste management responsibilities?

OSMS contractor will perform waste management activities for the OSMS scope activities.  The 

referenced section was not intended to indicate site-wide waste management services.  The D&D 

contractor is responsible for waste management activities for waste generated by its activities and in 

accordance with Section C, Section J, Attachment J-7 Facilities/Areas Responsibility Matrix and Site 

Services, Section J, Attachment J-8.2 D&D Waste Inventory, and services described in Section J, 

Attachment J-5 PPPO Site Services and Interface Requirements Matrix.

8 G-8(a) Page G-

6

CPARS Does DOE contemplate doing CPARS at the task order level or an annual roll-up of all Task Order 

performances?

This is a post award decision. However, the evaluation in CPARS can be completed at the IDIQ contract 

level or at the individual Task Order level.

Per FAR 42.1502, paragraph (d), Orders under single-agency contracts. "For single-agency task-order and 

delivery-order contracts, the contracting officer may require performance evaluations for each order in 

excess of the simplified acquisition threshold when such evaluations would produce more useful past 

performance information for source selection officials than that contained in the overall contract 

evaluation (e.g., when the scope of the basic contract is very broad and the nature of individual orders 

could be significantly different). This evaluation need not consider the requirements under paragraph (g) 

of this section unless the contracting officer deems it appropriate."

9 H, H.4(a) Page 

H-6

Employee Hiring Preferences Recent procurement have excluded construction workers. Is this also the case for this contract? H.4(a) applies to incumbent service workers covered by the Service Contract Act.  "Construction workers" 

may not be offered the Right of First Refusal because the Service Contract Act does not apply; however, 

incumbent "construction workers" may have a preference in hiring under this clause.   

10 H, H.56, Page 

H.87

Environmental Compliance Discusses joint permittees. With the transition of activities to the OSMS contractor do you have a list 

of permits which you expect to have joint permittees?

There are currently not specific permits that will be joint with the D&D and OSMS contractors, although 

this circumstance could arise.

11 L.14 Proposal Preparation 

Instructions

Section L.14, Proposal Preparation Instructions – Key Personnel, Paragraph (d)(3)(v), states, “If 

conducted virtually, Offerors may utilize 8 ½ x 11 sketch pads or legal pads and markers during the 

oral interviews.” During the Team Oral Interview portion, will the Government allow the use of Flip 

Charts and/or other large medium such as White Boards to enable the Key Personnel to solution the 

provided incidents?

No, per Section L.14, Proposal Preparation Instructions - Key Personnel, all that is allowed is sketch pads 

or legal pads.

12 L.14 Oral Section L.14, Proposal Preparation Instructions – Key Personnel, the second paragraph under (d)(1) 

states, “The team interview will include technical and/or managerial incidents.” Will the Government 

clarify the plan for this 60 minute session (i.e., number of question/answer cycles) and time for team 

collaboration to prepare responses? Or, is the anticipated structure to be in Q&A form?

DOE will conduct an interview with the key personnel team by presenting multiple incidents at the 

beginning of the interview. The key personnel team will have 60 minutes to respond to the incidents.
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13 Cover Letter Workforce The Cover Letter for the RFP states: "DOE does not anticipate workforce reductions associated with 

the scope alignment in the new contracts. With the expectation of continued stable funding for the 

D&D activities, it is anticipated that the site workforce will remain stable amongst the new PORTS 

D&D and OSMS contractors, along with the continuance of comparable benefits."  However, the RFP 

itself does not include corresponding language. Please clarify that all Offerors are to assume that there 

will be no reductions in the Portsmouth D&D site prime contractor workforce during the Portsmouth 

contract transition and that the successful Offeror must either hire or transfer to the OSMS contract 

all current incumbent contractor direct employees. Please add language to the RFP regarding this 

requirement. 

The RFP in Section H.4 Workforce Transition and Employee Hiring Preferences Including through Period of 

Performance,  requires the new Contractor and its subcontractors to maintain and develop trained and 

qualified personnel to perform the work scope included in Section C.  This language does not require the 

new Contractor to hire all incumbent employees; however, if the new Contractor has remaining job 

openings it is expected that the new Contractor will follow the preference in hiring language in filling 

those job vacancies.  The RFP does not dictate to the new Ports D&D contractor to hire all incumbent 

employees, rather the RFP requires the new contractor to employ a "trained and qualified" workforce. 

See the OSMS RFP for terms and conditions associated with its workforce requirements.

14 Section B B.6 Funding Profile Section B.6 provides the contract planned funding profile by Fiscal Year. The annual funding in this 

table does not appear to include the separate funding for the OSWDF Capital Asset Projects (CAP). For 

example, enacted Portsmouth site funding for FY2021 was $367M plus an additional $62.9M for 

OSWDF CAP.  Please clarify that the B.6 Funding Profile excludes the OSWDF CAP funding. 

The funding profile included in B.6 is inclusive of the OSWDF capital asset project funding. The funding 

profile is reduced from FY2021 as funding is shifted to the OSMS contract to support scope activities 

moved to that contract.

15 Section L Attachment L-7 Task Order 1 

Contract Transition and 

Table J-4-1 provides a list of transition deliverables. This list does not include submittal of a 10-Year 

End State Strategic Task Order Plan per the June 24, 2021 DOE EM memorandum which states: "The 

Task Order plan must be submitted within 60 days of the

start of contract transition..." Please clarify if this plan is a required deliverable during transition due 

within 60 days. 

The referenced plan is currently not required as a contract transition deliverable.

16 Section L L-11(m) Organizational 

Conflicts of Interest

New language added in the final RFP states "will create a potential conflict of interest" and specifies 

various elements of scope among the different PPPO contracts listed. Is it acceptable to DOE that 

companies can bid and win both contracts so long as appropriate mitigating measures are put in place 

to address the potential conflicts of interest identified by DOE in the added language?  

The provision's additional language does not prohibit companies from competing for and potentially 

being selected for award of both the OSMS and PORTS D&D contracts, or being awarded one of those 

contracts regardless if it performs as the contractor or subcontractor for other current PPPO contracts.  

Rather, the provision clarifies conditions that require an Offeror to submit a draft OCI Mitigation Plan as 

part of its proposal. Note that Sections C, L and Attachment J-5 will be revised via an Amendment 

regarding the potential conflicts, specifically removing conflicting scope related to Nuclear Material 

Control and Accountability.

17 Section L L-11(m) Organizational 

Conflicts of Interest

Since all members of a prime contractor joint venture are responsible for the entire scope of work 

through joint and severable liability; would DOE agree that subcontracting MC&A scope on the OSMS 

contract is an acceptable mitigation for a member of a joint venture on both contracts? 

This is as per H.22: "If the Contractor is a joint venture, limited liability company, or other similar 

entity where more than one organization is involved, the parent(s) or all member organizations shall 

assume joint and severable liability for the performance of the contract." Please advise.

DOE cannot make a determination on the acceptability of a proposed OCI mitigation at this time. 

However, note that Sections C, L and Attachment J-5 will be revised via an Amendment regarding the 

potential conflicts, specifically removing conflicting scope related to Nuclear Material Control and 

Accountability.
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18 Section L L-11(m) Organizational 

Conflicts of Interest

New language added in the final RFP states "will create a potential conflict of interest" and specifies 

various elements of scope among the different PPPO contracts listed. Will an Offeror whose joint 

venture has none of the potential conflicts of interest identified by DOE be viewed more favorably by 

DOE than an Offeror whose joint venture or team possesses potential conflicts of interest requiring 

mitigation?

No, as OCI is not an evaluation factor.

19 Section H H.7 Workforce Transition and 

Benefits Transition -- Union 

Negotiations During 

Transition

Language added to clause H.7 includes aspects of union negotiations during transition. However, the 

incoming contractor will not have authority to sign a new agreement until after transition is 

completed and it assumes execution responsibility. Is it DOE's intent that the incoming contractor 

would become signatory to/adopt the current union agreement(s) at contract turnover and conclude 

negotiations of the new union agreement(s) during the Implementation Period? If union negotiations 

are required to be completed and a new agreement signed upon turnover that could create a situation 

in which timing becomes a predominate leverage tool used to influence the outcome and result in 

unnecessary workforce tension. What is DOE's intent regarding timing for completion of negotiations 

and for the new agreement(s) to be signed?

H.7(a)(2)(i) requires the new Contractor to include in the transition deliverable (Workforce Transition 

Plan) information on the "processes and procedures" the new Contractor proposes to implement and 

comply with in accordance with H.9 Labor Relations.  This clause requires the new Contractor to plan 

early, submit parameters as soon as possible, if any, to meet all requirements for the multiple collective 

bargaining agreements.  It is not DOE's intent to require the new Contractor to have a new agreement in 

place at contract turnover, but strongly encourages putting their plans together early, drafting the 

parameters for early submittal and conducting discussions with the multiple unions as soon as possible.  

20 Section H H.7 Workforce Transition and 

Benefits Transition

H.7 contains a discrepancy with respect to the due date of the draft Benefits Transition Plan: (b)(1) 

states within 15 days of transition effective date and (b)(2)(iii)(a) states within 20 days of the effective 

date of transition NTP. Which is correct? 

H.7(b)(1) requires the initial draft Benefits Transition Plan to be submitted within 15 days after the 

effective date of the contract transition NTP.  H.7(b)(2)(iii)(A) requires a final draft Benefits Transition 

Plan to be submitted within 20 days after the effective date of the contract transition NTP.  The five-day 

difference between the two submittals is to allow time for the contractor to address any comments/edits 

provided on the first draft.  Therefore, both are correct.

21 Section H, 

Section J-

Attachment J-

5

H.69 PPPO Site Services and 

Interface Requirements 

Matrix and Attachment J-5

The new section H.69 includes language that states: "If Contractors entering into services agreement, 

Contractors shall pay for services from other site contractors in accordance with approved financial 

accounting systems and notify their DOE CO." Attachment J-5 delineates between Direct Funded and 

Unit Billed Services and implies that contractors only reimburse other contractors for Unit Billed 

Services. Can DOE provide a rough estimate as to what $ value may potentially be paid by the PORTS 

D&D contractor to other site contractors for these services -- is it less than $5M, $10M, $20M per 

year, $30M, $40M or some other value?  It appears the majority of services are Direct Funded and so 

not on a Unit Billing basis. Please provide rough information for proposal/planning purposes.

The majority of the services are direct funded. An estimate is not available to be provided, as it is 

dependent on optional services an offeror may choose to utilize and potential for exceeding the base 

case for services, which could result in unit billing costs.

22 Section J Attachment J-5 Interface 

Requirements Matrix

If a Funding for Services is specified as "Direct Funded" under either the ISS-PORTS or OSMS Contracts, 

does that mean that the PORTS D&D Contractor does not reimburse for those services? 

Correct. DOE direct funds the contractor performing the work with applicable project funds.
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23 Section J Attachment J-5 Interface 

Requirements Matrix

If a Unit Billed Services is specified as "None" for either a ISS-PORTS or OSMS provided service, does 

that mean that the PORTS D&D Contractor does not reimburse the providing contractor for those 

services?

Correct.

24 Section J Attachment J-5 Interface 

Requirements Matrix

Page J-5--32 states that the OSMS Contractor is responsible for disposition of "all" excess property as a 

mandatory service to the PORTS D&D Contractor; however, Section C.6.1.21 Property Management 

states: "The Contractor [PORTS D&D] shall identify, control, and disposition high-risk property with 

support from the ISS contractor in property identification and guidance on disposition in accordance 

with 41 CFR 109 and FAR 52.245-1.B13:E13." Please clarify.

An amendment will be issued to revise Section C and Section J, Attachment J-5 to provide clarity. The 

Contractor shall coordinate with the OSMS contractor for excess property intended for reuse or transfer 

to other government entities or Community Reuse Organization, otherwise such property is the 

Contractor's responsibility for disposition including disposal.

Similarly, per Section C.6.2.3 Asset Recovery , the Contractor shall work in coordination with the OSMS 

contractor and shall turnover recovered assets to the OSMS contractor for offer/transfer to the 

Community Reuse Organization.

25 C.6.1.1 Performance Measurement 

Baseline

C.1.1(e) states that, “Performance Measurement Baseline (PMB): The Contractor shall submit an initial 

PMB in accordance with Section C.6.1.1, sub-section, Performance Measurement Baseline, and Section 

J, Attachment J-4, Contract Deliverables.

There is no sub-section, Performance Measurement Baseline within Section C.6.1.1. Please provide the 

appropriate reference section.

The reference should be to Section C.6.1.1, sub-section Master Contract Performance Baseline (Master 

CPB). Section C will be revised via an amendment.

26 C.1.1(l) Task Order Preparation Section C.1.1 (l) Task Order Proposals states that "During Transition, DOE will request Task Order 

Proposals that are compliant with" FAR Subpart 15.4. Yet Section L.17 states "Note: The transition cost 

shall not include any bid and proposal costs for activities associated with post-transition Task Orders." 

Please clarify. Does DOE expect the bidding entity to prepare Task Orders proposals during transition 

but not provide a cost estimate to prepare such Task Order proposals?

Yes, the costs for development of the proposal for Task Order 2 should not be included in the proposal 

for Task Order 1 - Transition; however, during execution of Task order 1, the Contractor will be allowed to 

invoice allowable Task Order 2 proposal development costs that are in compliance with their accounting 

practices.

27  L-11(m) Organizational Conflicts of 

Interest

New language added in the final RFP states "will create a potential conflict of interest" and specifies 

various elements of scope among the different PPPO contracts listed. Is it DOE's intent that Offeror 

joint venture/LLC members forming a prime contractor bidding entity for the PORTS D&D contract be 

excluded from participating as part of a joint venture/LLC for the OSMS contract?  Alternatively, is it 

acceptable to DOE that companies can bid and be on a winning team for both contracts so long as 

appropriate mitigating measures are put in place to address potential conflicts of interest, including 

those identified by DOE in the added language?

The provision's additional language does not prohibit companies from competing for and potentially 

being selected for award of both the OSMS and PORTS D&D contracts, or being awarded one of those 

contracts regardless if it performs as the contractor or subcontractor for other current PPPO contracts.  

Rather, the provision clarifies conditions that require an Offeror to submit a draft OCI Mitigation Plan as 

part of its proposal. Note that Sections C, L and Attachment J-5 will be revised via an Amendment 

regarding the potential conflicts, specifically removing conflicting scope related to Nuclear Material 

Control and Accountability.

28 L-11(m) Organizational Conflicts of 

Interest

Will an Offeror whose joint venture has none of the potential conflicts of interest identified by DOE 

be more favorably evaluated against the Evaluation Criteria provided in Section M of the Final RFP? 

Does the presence or absence of a potential conflict of interest impact DOE’s intent to award the 

contract based on Best Value when considering the evaluation criteria provided?

No, as OCI is not an evaluation factor.
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29 L-11(m) Organizational Conflicts of 

Interest

If it is DOE’s desire to avoid potential conflicts of interest by having companies not participate on 

contracts that would involve potential conflicts of interest, please make that clarification for the sake 

of all bidders.   

The provision's additional language does not prohibit companies from competing for and potentially 

being selected for award of both the OSMS and PORTS D&D contracts, or being awarded one of those 

contracts regardless if it performs as the contractor or subcontractor for other current PPPO contracts.  

Rather, the provision clarifies conditions that require an Offeror to submit a draft OCI Mitigation Plan as 

part of its proposal. Note that Sections C, L and Attachment J-5 will be revised via an Amendment 

regarding the potential conflicts, specifically removing conflicting scope related to Nuclear Material 

Control and Accountability.

30 H.43(a)(1) Key Personnel In this Section the following is stated: “The Program Manager shall be employed by the Prime 

Contractor.” Is it DOE's intent to require that the Program Manager be an employee of the winning 

Joint Venture/LLC or an employee of a member of the winning Joint Venture/LLC?  The term “Prime 

Contractor,” as opposed to “Contractor,” is rarely used in the RFP and is nowhere defined.  In addition, 

the Program Manager or their equivalent typically remains an employee of an LLC member.  As such, 

 this statement raises questions regarding this apparent, potential limitation on the choice of Program 

Manager.  Having the Program Manager potentially sacrifice parent company provided incentives and 

benefits (provided by the company; not a cost to the government) to become an LLC employee could 

hinder offerors’ ability to place the most talented, experienced Program Manager.  Examples of 

corporately provided benefits often include: long term retention bonus programs; loss of access to 

company provided training and training systems; corporately provided career development 

opportunities; loss of service credit and company seniority; loss of vacation accrual; starting over with 

benefit deductible(s); starting over with FICA withdraws.     

The prime contractor includes members of the prime teaming arrangement to include LLC or joint 

venture members as defined in FAR 9.601(1).

31 H.43(a)(1) Key Personnel In this Section the following is stated: “The Program Manager shall be employed by the Prime 

Contractor.” This requirement has not been included on recent End State Model Contracts; why is this 

contract different? What is the driver for this requirement?

This requirement was included based on lessons learned from the PPPO. 

32 C.1.2 Outgoing Transition and 

Closeout

For clarity, is it DOE's intent to issue and fund a closeout Task Order extending beyond the end of the 

ordering period to permit closeout of all open FAR 4.804 activities?

DOE intends to issue a Task Order for Outgoing Transition and Closeout activities at a later date.

33 H.5 DOE-H-2001 Employee 

Compensation: Pay and 

Benefits (Jan 2022) (Revised)

Please confirm the incumbent contractor's benefit plan is acceptable and a corrective action plan will 

not be immediately required.

The incumbent contractor is not currently under any corrective action and a corrective action plan should 

not be immediately required for the successor contractor.
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34 H.5 DOE-H-2001 Employee 

Compensation: Pay and 

Benefits (Jan 2022) (Revised)

This is a new clause to replace DOE-H-2001 Employee Compensation: Pay and Benefits (Oct 2014).  

The new clause was proposed to several major contractors and was not accepted because of the many 

uncertainties and potential negative impacts which could not be clarified by DOE Contractor Industrial 

Relations and DOE-HQ EM.  It is recommended that the Oct 2014 clause be inserted and this clause be 

included as an alternate to be activated once the mechanisms and implementation processes are 

developed and accepted by the contractor(s).

The revised H.5 clause does not impact offerors' ability to submit proposals.  Any clarifications needed on 

post-award actions included in the revised H.5 clause will be addressed post-award.  

35 H.6 Special Provisions Applicable 

To Workforce Transition and 

Employee Compensation: 

Pay and Benefits

The Clause states that Incumbent employees shall carry over length of service credit from the 

Incumbent Contractor.  The Clause does not address length of service credit for new LLC employees 

brought in from the new contractor’s parents or affiliates, where carrying forward length of service 

credit is a standard policy/practice. Please revise a(1) to read: "For Incumbent Employees hired by the 

Contractor as set forth in H.3 Clause entitled, Definitions, and for Non-Incumbent Employees hired 

from the contractor's parents and affiliates,  the Contractor shall carry over leave balances and the 

length of service credit from Incumbent Contractor/parent's and affiliates for purposes of 

determining rates of accruing leave for these employees as required by and consistent with applicable 

law and applicable collective bargaining agreements."  This revision will confirm that length of service 

credit with the parent company and affiliates will carry forward for leave accrual and that service with 

Parent Organizations under DOE or NNSA M&O or Site Management Contracts will entitle employees 

to the full spectrum of benefits. (For reference, see NNSA Directive NA SD O 350.1.)  Absent the ability 

to carry over leave balances and service credit, it is unlikely corporate employees would be willing to 

transfer to Portsmouth/Paducah.

The RFP includes the requirement to recognize service credit for those incumbent employees transitioned 

over to the new contract.  Any additional recognition of service credit can be addressed post award and 

included in the transition deliverable Contractor Employee Compensation Plan.  

36 H.19/ H.53 DOE-H-2026 Contractor 

Purchasing System 

Administration (Oct 2014) 

(Revised)/ Parent 

Organization Support

Please confirm that Parent Organization Support is to be obtained via interorganizational financial 

transfers under FAR 31.205-26(e) and not through subcontracts under the contractor's purchasing 

system.

Per H.53 Parent Organization Support,  if parent organization support is proposed by the Contractor or 

required by DOE, the Contractor shall submit for DOE review and approval, an annual Parent Organization 

Support Plan. The proposed approach can be included in the plan for DOE approval.
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37 H.51(e) Task Ordering Procedure This paragraph provides for issuance of an undefinitized Task Order.  This has proven to be 

problematic at one site already where an undefinitized CPIF task order was issued. With delays in 

definitization, essentially the TO will become a cost-plus-fixed-fee arrangement with little to no 

opportunity for the contractor to earn incentive fee. It is suggested that, in the event of the need for 

an undefinitized task order to be issued, this paragraph be revised to provide for issuance of an 

interim CPFF task order to permit work to commence while the final task order is definitized. 

DOE does not anticipate having undefinitized Task Orders, although the suggestion will be considered if 

such a circumstance arises post-award.

38 H.68 Regional Purchasing Program Please add to the clause the specific statutory authority which authorizes the 5% SOFC preference 

evaluation factor so as to avoid potential conflict with the statutorily authorized Small Business 

Administration evaluation factor(s).

The SOFC preference is not an evaluation factor, it is a regional preference. DOE is not aware of SOFC 

preference being prohibited by law, EO, or other regulation (it has been done for many years at 

LANL/northern New Mexico area), and therefore is a permissible exercise of authority IAW FAR 1.102(d). 

No change.

39 C.6.1.1 Subgroup Master Contract 

Performance Baseline 

(Master CPB), Item (d)(5)

"The Master CPB cost estimate shall include….and identification of direct costs, indirect costs, 

management reserve, and fee." Within in the same section, item (f)(1) requires that, the Contractor 

shall develop and submit an initial Master CPB. Subsequent updates to the Master CPB will occur as 

each Task Order is negotiated and awarded. These proposed Master CPB updates will be submitted as 

part of the task ordering process to the CO, for DOE and Contractor negotiation.

Both sections require a require a breakout of management reserve prior to contract or contract 

change negotiation, and further state that the breakout will be used for DOE and Contractor 

negotiation. This is in direct conflict with DOE G 413.3-7A for non-M&O Contracts.

DOE G 413.3-7A, Section 7.2 Contracting Approach for Non-M&O Contracts states ‒  “As a general 

matter, in a cost proposal, contractor contingency should be tied to specific work scope and be 

proposed as standard cost elements recognized by the FAR. What this implies is that the contract 

price is not allowed to explicitly call out a separate budget for management reserve, since reserves for 

uncertainties within the scope of the contract are expected to be included within the contractor 

price.” 

‒     “Management reserve is carved out after the contract value has been negotiated.” Similarly, DOE 

G 413.3-7A, Section 7.3 Project Management Approach for Non-M&O Contracts states ‒     “The 

offeror and/or the contractor’s proposal in response to the solicitation will propose a technical 

approach and incorporate the necessary quantities, cost and schedule to accomplish the work and 

handle the risks to accomplish its proposed approach.”

‒     “And then, after the contract is awarded, the contractor will prepare a PMB and MR.”

Based on the above citations from the RFP, it appears that the Government intends to use an M&O 

contract management approach although the RFP specifically states that the PORTS D&D contract is to 

be a FAR 15 based IDIQ contract. Question: Is the PORTS D&D Contract to be managed as an M&O 

contract with multiple Task Orders or is the PORTS D&D Contract to be managed as a FAR 15, non-

M&O contract?

The PORTS D&D contract is a FAR 15, IDIQ contract, not an M&O contract.  The reference to identification 

of management reserve refers to contractor performance baseline management and reporting 

requirements subsequent to the negotiation of the proposal.  The contractor proposal will not identify 

management reserve specifically.  
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40 J-10- 7(b) Award Fee - Cost Overrun 

Table

The concept of a predetermined award fee pool reduction for a cost overrun under a cost 

reimbursement contract is unreasonable.  The concept behind an award fee contract is to make value 

judgments on performance.  Arbitrary fee pool reductions without consideration of reasons for a cost 

overrun is inappropriate and unwarranted.  If no valid reason/excuse for an overrun can be provided, 

the FDO can reduce the fee earned.  As written, the preface to the table says, "If the contractor’s total 

cost of performance in the period exceeds the TO Performance Baseline, then the total available 

award fee pool for the evaluation period shall be reduced by the percentage shown in the table."  

Please delete this Table and concept as it does not comport with the award fee concepts and 

principles. 

Attachment J-10 is a draft version of the Performance Evaluation and Measurement Plan (PEMP) included 

for information only.  The PEMP will be developed and executed post-award.

41 L.14 Proposal Preparation 

Instructions

Section L.14 of the Final RFP limits Key Personnel to 2 required and 2 non-required Key Personnel.  We 

request that DOE eliminate the cap on total numbers of Key Personnel and leave it up to the bidders 

to propose what it will take to effectively perform the work.

DOE considered the suggestion and determined that the limit is appropriate.  No change.

42 6.1.1 Master Contract 

Performance Baseline 

(Master CPB) - Item (d)(5) 

and (f)(1)

•	RFP Section C.6.1.1, Subgroup Master Contract Performance Baseline (Master CPB), Item (d)(5) – “The 

Master CPB cost estimate shall include …. and identification of direct costs, indirect costs, 

management reserve, and fee.”

•	Within that same section, Item (f)(1) requires that, the Contractor shall develop and submit an initial 

Master CPB. Subsequent updates to the Master CPB will occur as each Task Order is negotiated and 

awarded. These proposed Master CPB updates will be submitted as part of the task ordering process 

to the CO, for DOE and Contractor negotiation. 

•	Both sections require a breakout of management reserve prior to contract or contract change 

negotiation, and further state that the breakout will be used for DOE and Contractor negotiation. This 

is in direct conflict with DOE G 413.3-7A for non-M&O Contracts. 

•	DOE G 413.3-7A, Section 7.2 Contracting Approach for Non-M&O Contracts states 

‒	In a cost proposal, contractor contingency should be tied to specific work scope and proposed as 

standard cost elements recognized by the FAR. Contract price is not allowed to explicitly call out a 

separate budget for management reserve, since reserves for uncertainties are expected to be included 

within the contractor price. 

‒	Management reserve is carved out after the contract value has been negotiated.

•	Similarly, DOE G 413.3-7A, Section 7.3 Project Management Approach for Non-M&O Contracts states

‒	The contractor’s proposal will propose a technical approach and incorporate the necessary quantities, 

cost, and schedule to accomplish the work and handle the risks to accomplish its proposed approach. 

‒	After the contract is awarded, the contractor will prepare a PMB and MR.

•	Based on the above citations from the RFP, it appears that the Government intends to use an M&O 

contract management approach although the RFP specifically states that the PORTS D&D contract is to 

be a FAR 15 based IDIQ contract. 

•	Question: Is the PORTS D&D Contract to be managed as an M&O contract with multiple task orders 

or is the PORTS D&D Contract to be managed as a FAR 15, non-M&O contract?

The PORTS D&D contract is a FAR 15, IDIQ contract, not an M&O contract.  The reference to identification 

of management reserve refers to contractor performance baseline management and reporting 

requirements subsequent to the negotiation of the proposal.  The contractor proposal shall not identify 

management reserve specifically.   

43 H.43(a)(1)

L.14(a)(2)

Program Manager Employer Section H.43(a)(1) states, "The Program Manager shall be employed by the Prime Contractor." 

L.14(a)(2) however, requires that, "The Offeror shall identify the organization that will employ the 

Program Manager and Decontamination & Decommissioning Manager during performance of the 

Contract, e.g., Offeror, Offeror affiliates, teaming partners, or Teaming Subcontractors." From this, it 

appears that the Program Manager may be employed by any entity that is a part of the prime 

contractor. Is this correct?

Yes, the prime contractor includes members of the prime teaming arrangement to include LLC or joint 

venture members as defined in FAR 9.601(1). 
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44 H.51(b) Task Ordering Procedure Section H.51(b) states that "In the event of a conflict between the Task Order and the Contractor’s 

Task Order proposal, the Task Order shall prevail." DOE Task Orders, however, do not include the level 

of detail that is provided in a contractor Estimate and Basis of Estimate. Thus, if this clause is included 

in the contract, DOE can claim that all elements of a broad, general scope are included in the task 

order, even when they were not estimated or included in the contractor's performance baseline. 

Suggest that this statement be deleted unless DOE plans to include the contractor's estimate and 

basis of estimate as a part of any resulting task order. 

DOE does not include cost estimates within Task Orders/contracts and is not intending to change that 

practice. No change.

45 H.3 Definitions Definition (i) states “UCOR” means URS|CH2MHill Oak Ridge under Contract No. DE-SC0004645 and is 

the current lead sponsor and administrator of the ETTP MEPP and ETTP Health and Welfare Benefit 

Plan.

The period of performance for UCOR Contract No. DE-SC-0004645 has ended. What company is now 

the lead sponsor and administrator of the referenced plans?

The contractor is UCOR (United Cleanup Oak Ridge, LLC), contract 89303322DEM000067.  Section H will 

be revised via an amendment.

46 L.11 (m) Organizational Conflicts of 

Interest

Text in the second paragraph states that DOE has determined the PORTS D&D PWS will create a 

potential OCI between the contractors/subcontractors performing the PORTS D&D PWS and other 

current and future Portsmouth or Paducah contractors/subcontractors including the Paducah ISS. 

What is the status of DOE RFP 89303319REM000057 for Paducah ISS, a small-business set-aside 

contract released on February 3, 2020? What process will be used to make a final award 

determination regarding this procurement?

Please confirm there is a conflict between the PORTS D&D and Paducah ISS. If there is a conflict, 

please explain the interface between the two contracts.

The provision's additional language does not prohibit companies from competing for and potentially 

being selected for award of both the OSMS and PORTS D&D contracts, or being awarded one of those 

contracts regardless if it performs as the contractor or subcontractor for other current PPPO contracts.  

Rather, the provision clarifies conditions that require an Offeror to submit a draft OCI Mitigation Plan as 

part of its proposal. Note that Sections C, L and Attachment J-5 will be revised via an Amendment 

regarding the potential conflicts, specifically removing conflicting scope related to Nuclear Material 

Control and Accountability.

 

DOE cannot provide any status information regarding the Paducah ISS procurement, at this time. Per 

Section DOE-L-2002 Proposal Preparation Instructions, Volume I – Offer and Other Documents – 

Alternate II, Alternate III, Alternate IV, Alternate V, and Alternate VI (Nov 2016), paragraph (m), DOE 

identified potential conflicts including for Portsmouth and Paducah ISS contractors in the specific areas of 

Safeguards and Security (C.6.1.15), Cyber Security (C.6.1.16), and Export Control Information (J-5, Service 

0007).  More specifically, for the Paducah ISS contactor the potential OCI is related to Cyber Security 

scope activities.

47 L.17(b)(2)(i) Contract Transition Task 

Order

This Section instructs the bidder to assume performance of the Contract Transition Task Order starts 

on November 28, 2022; however, DOE has announced that the Portsmouth D&D and DUF-6 contracts 

will be extended through September 27, 2023. please clarify the anticipated date of award and start of 

transition.

For proposal preparation purposes, Offerors are to utilize the dates provided within the solicitation.

48 Will you please provide a listing of the Subcontract Agreements (SCA’s) or other types of Vendor 

Agreements (VA’s) (Example: Long Term Rental Contracts, Maintenance Contracts, Purchase Order 

Agreements, Parts or Supplies Contracts, etc.) which have been designated to “Roll-Over” or be 

novated from the existing Prime Contract onto the next successful Prime Contractor?

The requested information is not needed for proposal preparation purposes.  This detailed information 

will be compiled during the period of the contract transition.
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49 If the DOE has not yet decided exactly which SCA’s or VA’s are suitable for roll-over or novation to the 

next Prime Contractor, then can you please provide a listing of those current Subcontracts and Vendor 

Agreements which are available for roll-over or novation?

The requested information is not needed for proposal preparation purposes.  This detailed information 

will be compiled during the period of the contract transition.

50 Will the new Prime Contractor be able to select, or provide input as to which SCA’s or VA’s are desired 

to be rolled-over or novated to the new Prime Contract?

Yes.

51 Can the new Prime Contractor refuse to accept an existing Subcontractor, or Vendor Agreement? See Section H.30 DOE-H-2043 Assignment and Transfer of Prime Contracts and Subcontracts for 

requirements.

52 Given the fact the Infrastructure Scope (DUF-6)  will be separated from the D&D Scope, how will a 

single existing Subcontract Agreement, or Vendor Agreement be novated or rolled over and split 

between the two different Prime Contracts?

The requested information is not needed for proposal preparation purposes.  This detailed information 

will be compiled during the period of the contract transition.

53 We understand there is an existing Project Labor Agreement (PLA) covering all work onsite at the 

Portsmouth Gaseous Diffusion Plant.  

The existing Project Labor Agreement (PLA) is between the incumbent contractor, Fluor-BWXT 

Portsmouth, LLC and Tri-State Building and Construction Trades Council and can be found in the 

documents library under the Contractor Human Resources Management (CHRM) subheader.  

54 Can you please provide a complete copy of the existing Project Labor Agreement, along with the 

names and contact information for all Signatory Labor Unions to the PLA?

The existing PLA is between the incumbent contractor, Fluor-BWXT Portsmouth, LLC and Tri-State 

Building and Construction Trades Council and can be found in the documents library under the CHRM 

subheader.  

55 What is the duration (term) of the existing PLA and when does it expire or renew? The existing PLA between the incumbent Contractor and the Tri-State Building and Construction Trades 

Council can be found in the documents library under the CHRM subheader.

56 Does the existing PLA only cover the United Steel Workers Local or does it also cover ALL Building 

Trades Unions as well?

The United Steelworkers Local 689 is not signatory to the PLA but does have a collective-bargaining 

agreement with the Incumbent Contractor.  The PLA contains a list of local union signatories, which can 

be found in the documents library under the Contractor Human Resources Management (CHRM) 

subheader.    

57 Does the existing PLA have Right of ‘Assignment’, or can the existing PLA be novated or rolled-over to 

the new Prime Contractor?

Potential Offerors should consult with labor counsel concerning their duties and obligations under 

applicable labor laws and regulations. See also the PLA, as well as Section H.9 of the RFP for additional 

information and requirements.

58 Is it mandatory that the new Prime Contractor accept all terms and conditions of the existing PLA? Potential Offerors should consult with labor counsel concerning their duties and obligations under 

applicable labor laws and regulations. See also the PLA, as well as Section H.9 of the RFP for additional 

information and requirements.

59 Can the new Prime Contractor perform the work on an Open Shop, or Merit Shop basis? Consistent with H.9(b) and applicable labor laws and regulations, the new prime contractor agrees to 

recognize the United Steelworkers, Local 689 and the Tri-State Building and Construction Trades Council 

as the collective bargaining representatives for employees performing work that has historically and 

traditionally been performed by members of these unions and is covered by the scope of the contract.  

The existing collective bargaining agreements between the Incumbent Contractor and these unions can 

be found in the documents library under the CHRM subheader.  Potential offerors should consult with 

labor counsel concerning their duties and obligations under the applicable labor laws and regulations.

60 What latitude will the new Prime Contractor have with respects to negotiating labor relations, and/or 

any changes for the benefit of the workers and future Labor Relations?

Please review Section H.9 for bargaining obligations and contractual requirements, as well as FAR 22.1, 

DEAR 970.2201, and all applicable Federal and State labor relations laws.  

61 What “physical” condition will the rental demolition heavy equipment be left in at the time of 

turnover to the new Prime Contractor?

The requested information is not needed for proposal preparation purposes.  This detailed information 

will be compiled during the contract transition and implementation period Task Orders, in development 

of the Task Order 3 proposal.

62 Please define what levels of ‘radiological contamination’ might exist on the demolition heavy 

equipment.  Or,

The requested information is not needed for proposal preparation purposes.  This detailed information 

will be compiled during the contract transition and implementation period Task Orders, in development 

of the Task Order 3 proposal.
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63 Please define if all demolition heavy equipment will be completely decontaminated prior to turnover 

to the new Prime Contractor.

The requested information is not needed for proposal preparation purposes.  This detailed information 

will be compiled during the contract transition and implementation period Task Orders, in development 

of the Task Order 3 proposal.

64 Please clarify if there will be any damage or repairs that might be required to the demolition heavy 

equipment at the time of turnover, or during transition.

The requested information is not needed for proposal preparation purposes.  This detailed information 

will be compiled during the contract transition and implementation period Task Orders, in development 

of the Task Order 3 proposal.

65 Will the new Prime Contractor be required to perform any ‘repairs’ due to damage during the 

transition timeframe or will the prior/existing Contractor be responsible to ensure all equipment will 

be 100% fully operational at the time of turnover?

The requested information is not needed for proposal preparation purposes.  This detailed information 

will be compiled during the contract transition and implementation period Task Orders, in development 

of the Task Order 3 proposal.

66 What procedures, or protocols have been developed or established for the turnover of demolition 

heavy equipment during the transition timeframe?  Example: Will a mutual walkdown and inspection 

of the equipment by both parties during the transition timeframe be performed?

The requested information is not needed for proposal preparation purposes.  This detailed information 

will be compiled during the contract transition and implementation period Task Orders, in development 

of the Task Order 3 proposal.

67 Should the Bidders define any cost elements, or should any costs be carried in the commercial 

proposals for damage, or repairs to the demolition heavy equipment during the transition timeframe?

The incoming contractor will not take over responsibility for such equipment until the beginning of Task 

Order 2, Implementation Period.  

68 Please provide a list of the demolition heavy equipment anticipated to be left onsite and turned over 

to the new Prime Contractor at the time of transition.  

The requested information is not needed for proposal preparation purposes.  This detailed information 

will be compiled during the contract transition and implementation period Task Orders, in development 

of the Task Order 3 proposal.

69 Are the Bidders required to carry any costs to “radiologically decontaminate” any of the demolition 

heavy equipment during the transition timeframe?

The incoming contractor will not take over responsibility for such equipment until the beginning of Task 

Order 2, Implementation Period.  

70 Is the DOE anticipating to eventually purchase the existing demolition heavy rental equipment onsite, 

or are the Bidders required to address the radiological decontamination of the existing demolition 

heavy equipment onsite?

The requested information is not needed for proposal preparation purposes.  This detailed information 

will be compiled during the contract transition and implementation period Task Orders, in development 

of the Task Order 3 proposal.

71 Will the DOE please consider a time extension of a minimum of two weeks, or a one month time 

extension for the Bid Due Date?

DOE does not intend to provide an extension to the due date for proposals, at this time.
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